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1. Introduction 

This Preliminary Engineering Report (PER) for the City of Trinidad (City) presents project 
alternatives to improve the operation of the City’s stormwater system and to meet state standards. 
The report includes an evaluation of the City’s present system, an analysis of alternatives, and 
proposes specific courses of action from an engineering perspective. The City’s design consultant 
for the project is GHD, Inc. (GHD) of Eureka, California.  

A PER is a planning document required by USDA as part of the process of obtaining financial 
assistance for development of the project. This PER describes the proposed project from an 
engineering perspective, analyzes alternatives for the project, defines project costs, and provides 
information critical to the underwriting process. The City is seeking funding for upgrading their 
stormwater system. Generally, the content of the report below follows the guidance in USDA RUS 
Bulletin 1780-2 dated April 4, 2013.  

2. Project Planning 

2.1 Location 

A location map for the City of Trinidad is presented in Figure 1 (see Appendix A). Figure 1 includes 
the location of the Trinidad City Limits, the City sphere of influence, and elevation data from the 
USGS 7.5 minute quad sheet. The project area encompasses two areas of the City, defined as the 
upper area (Phase 1) and the lower area (Phase 2) as shown in Figure 1. Components of Phase 1 
have either been constructed or are in the final steps of design. The proposed project area 
presented herein includes the Phase 2 area.  

2.2 Environmental and Cultural Resources Present 

Environmental resources in the project planning area include Trinidad Bay and regional and local 
geology. Cultural resources are also discussed because of their relevance in development of 
projects in the area.  

2.2.1 Trinidad Bay  

Trinidad Bay is designated as an Area of Special Biological Significance (ASBS) and is one of 34 
ASBS ocean areas monitored and maintained for water quality by the State Water Resources 
Control Board (SWRCB). ASBS designated areas cover much of the length of California's coastal 
waters and support an unusual variety of aquatic life and often host unique individual species. 
Trinidad Bay was designated in 1974 as an ASBS in part because of the fluctuating presence of bull 
kelp (Nereocystis luetkeana), which are considered biologically significant in providing an ecological 
base for fish and invertebrate habitats by supplying food and shelter. All ASBS designated areas 
may be adversely affected by polluted stormwater discharges, which could damage their unique 
ecosystems. The intent of the ASBS designation is to give these areas a special status so that the 
valuable and sensitive biological resources can be protected from pollution through more restrictive 
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regulations. The law prohibits an undesirable alteration in natural water quality from waste 
discharges, and requires non-point source pollution to be controlled to the extent practicable. 

2.2.2 Geology  

A geotechnical analysis was conducted to better understand the geology and groundwater system 
underlying the City of Trinidad. Full details on the analysis can be found in the City of Trinidad 
ASBS Improvement Project Geotechnical Analysis, GHD (2012). A summary of key findings as they 
relate to the project area are presented below.  

Results of the geotechnical investigations revealed that the hydrogeology of the study area consists 
of an unconfined sandy marine terrace aquifer generally composed of medium to well graded silty 
sands, underlain by impermeable Franciscan Complex bedrock. Hydraulic conductivities throughout 
the project area were found to be very high due to the sandy marine terrace layers within the 
aquifer. The Franciscan Complex bedrock surface was mapped using a combination of soil boring 
data which identified the depth of bedrock and geophysical analyses, including seismic refraction 
and electrical resistivity, which revealed the bedrock topography, including several ancient 
underground sea stacks protruding close to the ground surface. 

Groundwater levels were monitored for a period of six months at 15-minute intervals to provide an 
indication of the current groundwater levels and the response to rainfall events. Review of the 
groundwater level readings indicated rapid groundwater movement and infiltration. 

2.2.3 Cultural Resources  

The Tsurai Study Area (TSA), located on a hillslope near the southeastern edge of Trinidad, is 
home to an ancient village site of the Yurok Tribe (Tribe). This village, known as Tsurai, is unique 
not only because it is one of the largest Yurok villages and is on the coast, but also due to its 
location on a cove protected from the ocean. Moreover, the language spoken at Tsurai is the most 
divergent dialect from what Yuroks of other villages spoke. Tsurai and the surrounding landscape 
are places of great significance to Yurok culture as evident in oral histories, ceremonial activities, 
and subsistence practices that continue to this day.  

Past archaeological studies have revealed that the village was a permanent settlement, containing 
multiple levels of human occupation through time. Cultural resources identified within the TSA 
include a cemetery, traditional trails, sacred trees, house pits, a sweathouse, a Brush Dance area, 
and a dense archaeological deposit associated with occupation of the village and use of the 
surrounding coastal and marine resources. Unfortunately, looting of the Tsurai village occurred 
throughout its history until the 1970s. In 1978, the Tsurai Ancestral Society was formed to protect 
and maintain the village and burial grounds. In the same year, the California Coastal Conservancy 
was established. The Conservancy purchased the lands encompassing the Tsurai Study Area and 
retains a conservation easement, although the TSA was sold to the City of Trinidad in 1989. The 
village site has been designated a California State Historical Landmark and is included on the 
California Register of Historic Places. Historical and archaeological resources associated with the 
village site are not necessarily confined to the TSA boundaries. Erosion of coastal bluffs on and 
near the village site is a major concern of the Tribe and the Tsurai Ancestral Society. 
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2.3 Population Trends 

The City’s service area for stormwater encompasses the City of Trinidad (shown in Figure 1, 
Appendix A). Between 2000 and 2010, the City experienced a growth rate of approximately 15 
percent, from 311 to 367. The State of California Department of Finance estimated the City’s 
population for January 1, 2016 to be 365 and 369 on January 1, 2017, indicating an estimated 
annual growth rate of 1.1 percent. Given that the City is one of the smallest incorporated cities in 
the state of California, population growth rate may fluctuate dramatically due to small growths or 
losses in population. According to the United States Census Bureau, the population had been 
unusually declining from 2010 to 2015. This was not a typical trend for the population, therefore, a 
growth rate of 1.1 percent, starting after the 2017 population estimate of 369, is assumed for use in 
projecting the future population. Table 1 shows the past, current, and projected population.  

 
Table 1. Past, current and projected Trinidad, California Population. 

2000 2010 2020 2030 2040 

311 367 381 423 473 

2.4 Community Engagement 

The City plans to continue implementing its existing stormwater education and outreach program. 
Program components include public meetings, stakeholder involvement, education about BMPs, 
and encouraging residents to be aware of and be observant so they can engaged and report any 
observed excessive erosion and stormwater discharge so the City can take action. The program 
includes dissemination of stormwater and watershed education materials using different media 
formats.  

3. Existing Facilities 

A summary of the existing stormwater system’s location, history, condition, and financial status are 
discussed below. Photographs of the existing system are provided in Appendix B.  

3.1 Location 

The existing stormwater system within City limits is shown in Figure 1 (see Appendix A). A 
schematic of the existing system layout including surface flow is provided in Figure 2 (see  
Appendix A).  

3.2 History 

The City’s existing stormwater system was constructed in the early 1970’s and discharges to a 
single 32-inch diameter stormwater outfall (State Board identification: TRI032), which discharges 
just south of the boat launch at Trinidad Head to Trinidad Bay. The existing system did not 
incorporate modern retention, treatment or infiltration features. Prior to beginning Phase 1 
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construction, the system was designed to capture and convey runoff to the outfall. The estimated 
annual flow discharged from the City’s discharge point, prior to Phase 1 construction, was 
approximately 8.5 million gallons based on an average annual rainfall of 48 inches. The portion of 
Phase I for which construction is complete includes two eight-foot diameter infiltrators 100 feet long 
beneath Trinity Street and a single six-foot diameter infiltrator 150 feet long beneath Ocean Avenue.  

3.3 Condition of Existing Facilities 

The existing stormwater collection infrastructure is aging and approaching the 50-year mark. Based 
on the age of the system, there are likely infiltration and inflow issues within the system. Some 
pipes may have been disconnected and it is unknown where some pipes drain to. 

The portions of Phase 1 that have been constructed on Ocean and Trinity Avenues are likely in 
good condition given their recent construction in 2014.  

3.4 Financial Status of Existing Facilities  

The City’s audited Annual Financial Report for the 2015-2016 fiscal year is included as Appendix E. 
Annual O&M costs for the City’s stormwater system is provided in Table 2. The City has no existing 
debts. Based on the 2015-2016 fiscal year, reserve amounts are as follows:  

 Emergency Reserve Fund: $459,000 

 Budget Stabilization Reserve Target: $459,000 

 Capital Asset and Special Project Reserves: $358,000 

 

Table 2. Current O&M costs. 

Item Cost 
Personnel (salary, benefits, taxes, insurance, training)  $         4,500  
Administrative (office supplies, printing, accounting, audit, 
etc.)  $             850  
Insurance  $             150  
Energy costs  (Vactor excavation)  $             100  
Monitoring & testing  $       56,000  
Vactor trailer maintenance/replacement  $             100  
Professional services  $             500  
Residuals disposal (dumpster)  $             650  
Outfall maintenance  $             900  
MS4 permit  $         2,900 
Stormwater (MS4) Program Management   $       10,500  
Total  $       77,150  
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4. Need for Project 

The goal of this project is to improve water quality through reducing pollutant discharge to the 
Trinidad ASBS. This section presents the relevant issues that illustrate the need for the proposed 
project.  

4.1 Health, Sanitation, and Security  

Stormwater discharge from the City that is conveyed to the existing outfall impacts the sensitive 
habitat within the ASBS. California’s Critical Coastal Areas Report (2006) identified bacteria, 
nutrients, and sediment pollutants of concern for Trinidad Bay. In addition, Trinidad’s Stormwater 
Management Plan included hydrocarbons as a priority pollutant (W&K 2008).  

In 2004, the City received a letter from the State Water Resources Control Board regarding the 
“Prohibition of Waste Discharge into the kelp beds at Trinidad Head ASBS” (Appendix C). The City 
has requested and received temporary exemption to the prohibition which requires additional 
conditions and must be reviewed. Documentation of this correspondence is provided in Appendix C.  

In addition to compliance with regulations, water quality impairments from the discharge of polluted 
runoff has potential to damage the ASBS ecosystem which could impact the City residents, many 
who rely on tourism and fishing for income which are both recognized beneficial uses of the ASBS. 
The beaches along the ASBS also provide an area for water contact and non-contact recreation, 
including aesthetic enjoyment. Unfortunately, poor water quality discharges threaten these 
beneficial uses and the inhabitants of the ASBS. 

4.2 Aging Infrastructure  

The existing stormwater collection infrastructure proposed for improvement was built approximately 
50 years ago. See Section 3.3 Condition of Existing Facilities for more information.  

4.3 Reasonable Growth 

Population growth within the City is not anticipated to alter the stormwater runoff volume, as there is 
not much available land that could be developed or altered to significantly change the amount of 
impervious area.  

5. Alternatives Considered 

As discussed in previous sections, the primary focus of this project is to reduce stormwater 
discharge into the ASBS. After performing the needs assessment, alternatives that meet the 
following design criteria were considered:  

 Provide removal of bacteria, nutrients, sediment, and hydrocarbons to meet regulatory 
requirements;  

 Provide attenuation for up to a 50-year storm event;  
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 Be technically feasible; and  

 Maintain project capital costs to be within budget. 

Design criteria specific to each alternative are presented in the following sections. Other alternatives 
were considered, but are not discussed in detail in this report. A brief summary of these 
alternatives, and why they were not further considered is provided in Section 5.3.  

5.1 Keep Existing Outfall (Alternative 1)  

In Alternative 1, the City would continue to discharge to the existing outfall and install a treatment 
system at a centralized location prior to discharge at the outfall to meet regulatory requirements 
(Figure 3, Appendix A). To remove the priority pollutants, a two stage filtration system would be 
implemented, each stage targeting certain pollutants. The initial stage would be a sorptive filtration 
system, such as the aquip® system from StormwaterRx, which targets the removal of trash, oils, 
suspended sediment, nutrients, and some organic hydrocarbons. The second stage would be a 
targeted stormwater polishing system, such as the purus® system from StormwaterRx, which would 
target bacteria removal, and additionally further remove organic hydrocarbons. 

The system would be connected to the existing main stormwater pipe leading to the outfall at 
Trinidad Bay, downstream of the final drainage inlet that contributes to the outfall discharge. The 
sorptive filter(s) would operate as a gravity system, and could be installed either above ground or 
below ground in traffic rated vaults. The polishing filter(s) would need to be installed above ground 
and be connected to an electrical power source in order to operate. The polishing filters could likely 
operate on gravity flow into the unit if the first-stage filters were installed above ground, otherwise, 
additional pumps and minor storage tanks may be necessary. After exiting the polishing filter(s), 
treated stormwater would then return into the existing stormwater pipe leading towards the outfall. 
Under Alternative 1, an NPDES permit and ASBS Compliance Plan would be an ongoing 
requirement.  

5.1.1 Design Criteria  

Design criteria for continuing to stormwater discharge to the existing outfall includes:  

 Discharge occurs only during wet weather;  

 Centralized stormwater treatment system;  

 Maintain existing stormwater infrastructure, including repairs as needed;  

 Minimize land acquisition (to accommodate new treatment system); and  

 Provide water quality treatment for the 2-year, 24-hour storm event. 

5.1.2 Environmental Impacts 

It is anticipated that a Mitigated Negative Declaration would be the appropriate CEQA document for 
Alternative 1, and that all impacts could be mitigated to be less than significant. The environmental 
impacts of keeping the existing stormwater outfall and installing a treatment system are discussed 
below.  
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 Biological Resources: Maintaining the existing stormwater outfall is not anticipated to 
have a significant impact on the ASBS. The treatment system would be designed to protect 
the Bay and surrounding biological resources. Additionally, an ASBS monitoring program 
would be required that includes core discharge monitoring, ocean receiving water, and 
reference area monitoring, plus bioaccumulation and rocky intertidal assessments. All 
ocean receiving water and reference area monitoring would be comparable with the Water 
Boards’ Surface Water Ambient Monitoring Program.  

 Cultural Resources: The implementation of this alternative would not result in disturbance 
to a designated historical structure or known archaeological resource. 

5.1.3 Land Requirements  

The potential area for the treatment system (shown in Figure 3, Appendix A) could require land or 
right-of-way acquisition (APN 042-081-035) from a private owner. It is possible that the system 
would take only a portion of the property and partial land or right-of-way acquisition could be 
pursued. The outcome of securing the necessary land requirements is not currently known and may 
make this alternative infeasible.  

5.1.4 Potential Construction Problems  

The construction activities that would be required for this alternative are minimal. Anticipated 
construction includes mobilization/demobilization, cultural monitoring, potholing, temporary 
construction sign, temporary traffic control, construction staking, erosion and sediment control, 
excavation, and treatment vault installation.  Problems relating to subsurface rock or high 
groundwater table are not anticipated. 

5.1.5 Sustainability Considerations  

This alternative incorporates operator simplicity by centralizing the treatment units to a single 
location. However, the simplicity provided by the single treatment location would likely be 
outweighed by the operation, maintenance, and demanding monitoring plan that would be required.  

5.1.6 Advantages and Disadvantages  

Advantages and disadvantages of installing a centralized treatment location and keeping the 
existing stormwater outfall are presented below:  

 Advantages of Alternative 1:  

o Structures that house the treatment cartridges can be configured in a variety of 
ways;  

o Would provide high level of treatment for water quality flow rates; 

o Could be installed to be easily accessible for inspection, media replacement, and 
washing of structure; and 

o Centralized location for O&M. 
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 Disadvantages of Alternative 1:  

o Land easement could be required;  

o An NPDES permit and a stormwater program would be required, with significant 
costs. Frequent and expensive monitoring would be required to stay in compliance 
with NPDES permit for ASBS;  

o Includes grey infrastructure only;  

o High replacement costs when system requires replacement; 

o Requires connection to the electrical grid to operate polishing filters, and a power 
backup system for emergencies; 

o Aesthetically, does not fit in with the surrounding community;  

o New and ongoing power, maintenance (e.g., filter replacement), and monitoring 
costs for the City; 

o Treated and overflow runoff would likely transport pollutants to the outfall; and  

o Operator would need to be trained for new treatment system. 

5.2 LID System without Outfall (Alternative 2)  

In Alternative 2, the City would decommission the existing stormwater outfall and replace it with a 
system of localized stormwater treatment chambers and infiltration basins. Potential locations for 
these features are shown in Figure 3 (Appendix A). The intent of the design would be to incorporate 
green infrastructure to provide pollutant removal and capture stormwater runoff.  

The overall system would include a system of stormdrain inlets, conveyance pipes, stormwater 
treatment chambers, and infiltration pipes. The treatment chambers would provide pollutant removal 
prior to the infiltrator pipes. The treatment units would remove oil, dirt, and trash from the 
stormwater. Further pollutant removal would occur in the natural treatment system provided by the 
underlying soil. Valley gutters, curbs and stormdrain manholes would also require minor 
improvements to direct the runoff within the system.  

5.2.1 Design Criteria  

Design criteria for constructing an LID system and decommissioning the existing outfall are:  

 Ability to treat, store, or infiltrate stormwater; 

 Fit within the existing City right of way; 

 Ability to upgrade stormwater treatment efficiencies; 

 Minimize reduction of city parking; and 

 Minimize operation and maintenance requirements.  
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5.2.2 Environmental Impacts 

It is anticipated that a Mitigated Negative Declaration would be the appropriate CEQA document for 
Alternative 2, and that all impacts could be mitigated to be less than significant. The environmental 
impacts of keeping the existing stormwater outfall and installing a treatment system are discussed 
below.  

 Biological Resources: Eliminating the existing stormwater outfall is not anticipated to have 
an impact on the biological resources within nor surrounding Trinidad Bay. Discharge 
elimination is anticipated to protect the ASBS.  Preliminary hydrology and groundwater 
hydrology modeling demonstrated that this alternative would not result in a significant 
impact to the underlying groundwater table.  

 Cultural Resources: The implementation of this alternative would not result in disturbance 
to a designated historical structure or known archaeological resource. 

5.2.3 Land Requirements  

The construction of this alternative would not require land acquisition or new access agreements. 
The majority of proposed project components fit within the existing City right of way. Collaboration 
with Trinidad Rancheria would be required for the portion of the project that would be located in the 
lower Harbor parking lot area, which is already in progress.  

5.2.4 Potential Construction Problems  

Anticipated construction includes mobilization/demobilization, potholing, temporary construction 
sign, temporary traffic control, construction staking, erosion and sediment control, excavation, pipe 
and treatment chamber placement, connection to the existing storm drain system, and 
decommissioning of the existing stormwater outfall. These improvements are fairly routine 
construction activities and are not expected to incur any major construction problems. Access to all 
sites is well established. Problems relating to subsurface rock or high groundwater table are not 
anticipated.  

5.2.5 Sustainability Considerations  

Alternative 2 incorporates green infrastructure that helps mimic natural hydrologic conditions. This 
alternative includes LID design components that captures, filters, and infiltrates stormwater runoff.  

5.2.6 Advantages and Disadvantages  

Advantages and disadvantages of constructing an LID system and decommissioning the existing 
stormwater outfall are presented below:  

 Advantages of Alternative 2:  

o Confined to areas with City right of way; 

o Incorporates green infrastructure;  

o Minimal maintenance would be required;  
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o The NPDES permit and ASBS monitoring would no longer be required; 

o Above ground LID features provide an opportunity for education; and  

o Direct stormwater discharge to the ASBS would be eliminated.  

 Disadvantages of Alternative 2:  

o Difficult to access infiltration pipes should maintenance be required; and   

o Maintenance would be required in several locations.  

5.3 Other Alternatives Considered 

Other alternatives were considered and were mainly variations of the two general alternative 
categories presented in this report. Variations were considered were infeasible due to either 
technical or cultural constraints. These alternatives included an expanded LID system that 
incorporated more infiltrators in more locations. Construction of infiltrators in certain areas increased 
the potential for bluff erosion, interaction with existing leach fields, or impact to groundwater 
elevation, and were therefore deemed technically infeasible.  

6. Cost Estimates  

Cost estimates for the two alternatives are divided into three categories: non-construction, 
construction, and O&M costs. Non-construction and construction costs are combined to estimate 
the capital costs and O&M costs reflect annual costs. A summary of capital costs is provided in 
Table 3 and an itemized budget is included in Tables D1 and D2 in Appendix D. Each of these cost 
components is discussed in the following subsections. The estimates presented herein are 
preliminary and are based on the level and detail of planning presented in this report. Cost sources 
include previous similar projects and communication with product manufacturers. As this project 
proceeds and as site specific information becomes available, the estimates will be updated.  

Table 3. Summary of capital costs for each alternative. 

Item Alternative 1 Alternative 2 
Direct Project Administration  $       176,000  $    176,000  
Engineering $       193,000  $    230,000  
Environmental $       137,000  $    107,000  
Monitoring and Performance $         77,000  $      74,000  
Land Acquisition $       100,000  $            -    
Education and Outreach $           8,000  $       8,000  
Bid Period Assistance $        20,000  $      20,000  
Construction Contingency $      320,000  $    396,300 
Construction  $   3,520,000  $ 4,358,675  

TOTAL $   4,551,000  $ 5,369,975 

6.1 Non-Construction Costs 

Non-construction costs are described in the following subsections.  
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6.1.1 Direct Project Administration  

Direct project administration includes administering funds, general management and coordination of 
the project, and labor compliance costs. A portion of general management and coordination 
includes education on the maintenance of new stormwater features throughout the City. The direct 
project administration was assumed to be the same for each of the alternatives.   

6.1.2 Engineering  

The Engineering cost includes the ground survey, geotechnical evaluation (as necessary), 
preliminary design, final plans and specifications, and bid documents for the alternative. The project 
design portion of both alternatives was assumed to be the same cost. Alternative 2 has an added 
cost to conduct a citywide LID hydrogeologic analysis. The cost of developing the Preliminary 
Engineering Report is also included in the engineering costs.  

6.1.3 Environmental: Permitting and Supporting Studies 

The Environmental cost is composed of permitting and supporting studies, which includes the cost 
of California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) documentation preparation and all studies and 
permits that may be required. A biological resources survey, cultural resources survey, and coastal 
development permit were assumed to be required for both alternatives. Alternative 1 had an 
additional cost under this subcategory due to the required report of waste discharge (Form 200), as 
well as additional permitting costs related to ongoing regulatory agency coordination for monitoring 
and other elated permit conditions.  

6.1.4 Planning 

The Planning cost includes the cost of a bond counsel. This cost is included under the assumption 
that a loan would be required to complete the project.  

6.1.5 Monitoring and Performance 

The Monitoring and Performance cost is composed of general project planning and management 
required for project performance assessment and evaluation, development and implementation of a 
monitoring plan, data management, QA/QC, and reporting.   

6.1.6 Land Acquisition  

Land acquisition includes the cost of land or right-of-way acquisition assistance, a permanent 
easement, and construction access easement.  This cost applies only to Alternative 1 (see Figure 3 
in Appendix A).  

6.1.7 Education and Outreach 

The Education and Outreach cost is the cost of developing, implementing, and assessing an 
education and outreach program. Potential program elements are included in Section 2.4 of this 
report. The capital cost of Education and Outreach is assumed to be the same for both alternatives.  
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6.1.8 Bid Period Assistance 

Bid Period Assistance costs encompass services for advertising, conducting a pre-bid meeting, 
selecting a contractor, responding to contractor questions, and issuing contract addenda.  

6.1.9 Construction Contingency  

A contingency factor equal to 10% percent of the estimated construction cost (excluding 
construction administration costs) was added for each alternative. The cost estimates presented are 
based on conceptual planning and allowances that may be made for variations in final quantities, 
bidding market conditions, changed construction conditions, unanticipated and specialized 
investigation and studies, and other difficulties which cannot be foreseen at this time.  

6.2 Construction Costs 

The estimated construction costs in this report are based on actual construction bidding results from 
similar work, published cost guides, discussions with local contractors, discussions with product 
manufacturer representatives, and other construction cost experience. Construction Administration 
was assumed to be the same for both alternatives. Project Initiation and Monitoring includes the 
cost of mobilization/demobilization, temporary construction sign, potholing, temporary traffic control, 
shoring and trench safety, construction staking, and erosion and sediment control. The cost of 
Project Initiation and Monitoring was assumed to be greater for Alternative 2 due to the larger 
footprint of the project. The remaining construction items are alternative-specific and include costs 
associated with labor and installation.  

6.3 Operations and Maintenance Costs  

Annual O&M costs for each alternative, shown in Table 4, were determined using the current 
estimated O&M costs (Table 2). The majority of costs for each alternative remained the same. A 
discussion of the items that varied from the current costs is provided here.  

Personnel costs were increased for both alternatives to account for training that would be required 
to operate and maintain a new system. The personnel costs for Alternative 1 increased by a greater 
amount due to the increased complexity of the system. Because Alternative 2 eliminates discharge 
to the ASBS, monitoring and testing costs associated with discharge to an ASBS were removed. 
The cost of this item remained the same for Alternative 1 since discharge to the ASBS would 
continue. The costs of Vactor trailer maintenance/replacement and residuals disposal increased for 
the two alternatives due to increased sediment and trash removal provided by each of the 
alternatives. Outfall maintenance costs and MS4 permit costs associated with discharging to an 
ASBS were removed for Alternative 2 since the outfall would be decommissioned. The last two 
budget items shown in Table 4 capture the cost of managing and operating a stormwater program. 
The MS4 Program is more expensive because of the more stringent compliance associated with an 
ASBS discharge. Both programs would require regional stormwater coordination and attendance to 
watershed council meetings. The MS4 Program would require additional tasks such as extensive 
reporting and monitoring BMPs.  
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Table 4. Annual O&M costs for each alternative. 

Item Alternative 1 Alternative 2 

Personnel (salary, benefits, taxes, insurance, 
training) 

 $            7,500   $            6,750  

Administrative (office supplies, printing, 
accounting, audit, etc.) 

 $                850   $                850  

Insurance  $                150   $                150  
Energy costs  (Vactor excavation)  $                150   $                150  
Monitoring & testing  $          56,000   $                   -    
Vactor trailer maintenance/replacement  $                150   $                150  
Professional services  $                500   $                500  
Residuals disposal (dumpster)  $                800   $                800  
Outfall maintenance  $                900   $                   -    
MS4 permit  $            2,900   $                   -    
Stormwater (MS4) Program Management  $          10,500   $                   -    
Stormwater Program Management  $                   -     $            2,500  
Total  $          80,400   $          11,850  

 

7. Selection of an Alternative 

7.1 Life Cycle Cost Analysis  

A life cycle present worth cost analysis was completed to compare the technically feasible 
alternatives. All costs were converted to present day dollars. In accordance with Bulletin 1780-2, a 
discount rate of 0.5% (White House, 2017) and a planning period of 20 years were used to bring 
annual costs to present value. No salvage value was assigned to either alternative. It was assumed 
that there would be no monetary value gained from the systems after the 20-year life cycle. It was 
also assumed that no short lived assets were included in either alternative. Results of the life cycle 
cost analysis are summarized in Table 5.  

 
Table 5. Summary of life cycle cost analysis. 

 Parameter Alternative 1  Alternative 2 
Discount Rate 0.5% 
Planning Period 20 years 
Capital   $  4,551,000   $  5,369,975  
Annual O&M  $       80,400   $       11,850  
Present Value  $  6,077,590  $  5,594,980  
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7.2 Non-Monetary Factors  

Sustainability considerations (discussed in Sections 5.1.5 and 5.2.5) were used in the selection of 
an alternative. Non-monetary factors included in the alternatives analysis were protection of 
Trinidad ASBS, inclusion of green infrastructure, opportunities for community outreach and 
education, monitoring requirements, and operational safety. These factors were identified based on 
project goals and the City’s staff availability to manage the system sustainably. Each of the 
alternatives was scored on a scale of zero to three for each of the non-monetary factors. A 
summary of the non-monetary factors considered in the selection of an alternative is provided in 
Table 6 of the following section.  

7.3 Preferred Project Alternative  

The select criteria shown are each equally-weighted in the alternative scoring. Taking into 
consideration the monetary and non-monetary factors of the alternatives, summarized in Table 6, 
Alternative 2 is the preferred project alternative.  
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Table 6. Alternative evaluation matrix. 

Criterion Parameter Alternative 1: Keep 
Existing Outfall 

Alternative 2: LID 
System without 

Outfall 

Protection of Trinidad 
ASBS 

Score 1 3 

Reasoning 

Treated stormwater 
discharge will 
continue to be 

discharged at outfall. 

Direct stormwater 
discharge to ASBS 
will be eliminated.  

Inclusion of green 
infrastructure 

Score 0 3 

Reasoning Does not include 
green infrastructure. 

Includes green 
infrastructure. 

Opportunity for 
community outreach 
and education 

Score 0 3 

Reasoning 

Includes grey 
infrastructure only, no 

opportunity for LID 
public education. MS4 

permit requires 
extensive education 
and outreach efforts. 

Above ground LID 
features provide an 

education opportunity. 
Potential future LID 
components may 

allow for community 
participation. 

Monitoring 
Requirements 

Score 2 3 

Reasoning Frequent monitoring 
required. 

Minimal monitoring 
required. 

Operational Simplicity 

Score 1 2 

Reasoning 

New system will 
require operator 

training. Requires 
operation of new 

treatment system. 
Single location for 

operator maintenance 

Operator 
maintenance in 

several locations.  

Life Cycle Cost 
Cost $6,077,590 $5,594,980 
Score 1 3 

Total Scores 5 17 
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8. Proposed Project 

The preliminary design, schedule, permit requirements, sustainability considerations, cost estimate 
and annual operating budget are presented in the following sections.  

8.1 Preliminary Project Design  

The proposed project is Alternative 2 which is to eliminate the existing stormwater outfall and 
replace it with a system of localized stormwater treatment chambers and infiltration basins. The 
intent of the design is to treat and dispose of stormwater closer to the areas of stormwater 
generation, which allows for a more distributed network of stormwater infrastructure that can be 
tailored to the anticipated runoff volumes generated in the contributing sub-watersheds.  

The base design of each stormwater treatment and infiltration system includes a local network of 
stormdrain inlets, conveyance pipes, stormwater treatment chambers, and infiltration pipes, in 
addition to some minor improvements including valley gutters, curbs, and stormdrain manholes. 
Drainage inlets capture the runoff from the existing curb, gutter and roadway network, which act as 
the initial receiving body of stormwater generated in the City. In some cases, inlets are located in 
the roadway or gutter area, and in others they are located within newly constructed grassed swales 
lined with permeable paver blocks. Where installed, these swales provide for additional infiltration 
area as well as some storage and treatment capacity, while preserving parking areas along the 
existing roadways. From the inlets, stormwater is conveyed through traditional high-density 
polyethylene (HDPE) stormwater pipes, which lead into stormwater treatment units. The treatment 
units are designed to remove oil, dirt, and trash from the stormwater, and are sized to allow the flow 
from the 50-year, 24-hour storm event through the unit. After leaving the treatment units, 
stormwater enters the infiltration pipes, which are large perforated HDPE pipes surrounded by drain 
rock, allowing the accumulated stormwater to slowly enter the subsurface water system. In this 
design the stormwater infiltration pipes act as the outfalls of the system, and are sized to 
accommodate the 50-year, 24-hour storm event. 

In total there are four primary stormwater systems that compose the Alternative 2 improvements, 
each of which is a combination of the improvements noted above. The systems are located along 
Ewing Street, Lower and Upper Underwood Drive, Edwards Street, and Lighthouse Road (Figure 5, 
Appendix A), and are presented in further detail below. 

Ewing Street: The improvements here include approximately 90 feet of 72-inch diameter 
stormwater infiltration pipe and stormwater treatment chamber, five new drainage inlets, and 
approximately 135 feet of new curb and 330 feet of new 12-inch diameter HDPE stormdrain pipe. 

Underwood Drive: The improvements here include two new drainage inlets, two 72-inch diameter 
infiltration pipes (totaling 70 feet) with one treatment chamber, and approximately 150 feet of 12-
inch HDPE stormwater pipe and 350 feet of concrete curb and valley gutters. 

Edwards Street: The improvements here include three stormwater treatment chambers, four 36-
inch diameter infiltration pipes (totaling 125 feet), 12 drainage inlets, and approximately 235 feet of 
8-inch diameter HDPE stormdrain pipe. 
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Lighthouse Road and Lower Parking Area: The improvements here include one treatment unit, 
1,500 feet of 54-inch diameter infiltration pipe, six drainage inlets, and approximately 1,180 feet of 
24-inch diameter HDPE stormdrain pipe. 

8.2 Project Schedule  

Pending acceptance of the City’s application for USDA assistance, the following schedule for 
implementation of the project is proposed:  

 April 2018: USDA awards the City funding for the proposed project; 

 October 2018: Prepare and submit required permit applications; 

 December 2018: Complete CEQA/NEPA process; 

 December 2018: Complete design; 

 April 2019: Award construction; and  

 October 2019: Construction project close out. 

8.3 Permit Requirements  

The stormwater system construction and operation would be conducted to meet all applicable local, 
State and Federal regulations. The following permits will may be required for certain aspects of the 
project:  

Table 7. Required permits and associated regulatory agencies. 

Regulatory Agency Potential Permit or Approval Required 

City of Trinidad  Coastal Development Permit 

City of Trinidad Encroachment Permit 

North Coast Regional Water Quality Control 
Board 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan  

Coastal Commission Coastal Development Permit (only if appealed)  

8.4 Sustainability Considerations  

The proposed project design helps mimic natural hydrologic conditions by facilitating stormwater 
capture, filtration, and infiltration. The green infrastructure (i.e., grassy bioswales and underground 
treatment/infiltration systems) incorporated in the proposed design provides an improved 
technology for protection of receiving waters, reduce construction and maintenance costs of 
stormwater infrastructure, and encourage public education and participation in environmental 
protection and stewardship.  
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The proposed project would permanently eliminate a stormwater discharge from the ASBS. The 
stormwater treatment and infiltration facilities provide water quality ASBS habitat benefits for a 
typical infrastructure life span of 20 years and potentially up to 40 years with continued regular 
maintenance. To ensure the long term function of the storm drainage system, LID facilities 
maintenance would be the responsibility of the City’s Public Works Department.  

8.5 Total Project Cost Estimate (Engineer’s Opinion of Probable 
Cost)  

The total project cost is approximately $5,369,975. A breakdown of costs is provided in Appendix D.  

8.6 Annual Operating Budget  

The following section outlines the annual operating budget for the City. Because the City does not 
collect funds for the stormwater system, income is not included in the operating budget.  

8.6.1 Annual O&M Costs 

Annual O&M Costs are provided in Table 4 as Alternative 2 costs. A discussion of each item that 
differs from current costs is provided in Section 6.3.  

8.6.2 Debt Repayments 

Because the City does not currently carry debt, debt repayments would be only from the loan for 
this project should the grant not be awarded. Assuming a 2.5% interest rate over a 30-year loan 
term, the City would need to make an annual payment of $22,400.  

8.6.3 Reserves 

The proposed loan would be funded by Capital Asset and Special Project Reserves presented in 
Section 3.4. Capital Asset and Special Project Reserves is a portion of undesignated general funds 
that remained as of the last audit report conducted for the 2015-2016 fiscal year.   

9. Conclusions and Recommendations 

Based on the evaluation of technically feasible alternatives, constructing an LID system and 
decommissioning the existing outfall is recommended. A summary of funding sources for the project 
is provided in Table 8.  

Table 8. Summary of funding sources for capital costs of the proposed project. 

Budget Item 
Funding Source 

Total Cost 
Prop 1 City USDA 

Direct Project Administration 
Costs  $        161,000   $        15,000   $                    -   $176,000 

Planning/Design/Engineering/ 
Environmental  $                   -     $                 -     $        337,000  $337,000 
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Budget Item 
Funding Source 

Total Cost 
Prop 1 City USDA 

Monitoring/Performance  $          74,000   $                 -     $                    -   $74,000 
Education/Outreach  $            8,000     $                    -   $8,000 
Bid Period Assistance  $                   -     $                 -     $          20,000  $20,000 
Construction Contingency  $        396,268    $                    -   $396,300 
Construction Administration  $        231,006  $                 -     $         164,994 $396,000 
Project Construction  $    3,962,675   $                 -     $                    -   $3,962,675 
Total  $    4,832,981  $        15,000   $        521,994 $5,369,975 

Installation of the proposed LID system would provide capture, treatment and infiltration for the 
City’s stormwater runoff. Because the City would no longer discharge to the ASBS, ongoing 
monitoring costs and requirements of City staff would be significantly reduced. Given the limited 
staff availability of the City, this is considered a significant advantage. In addition, the visible and 
accessible nature of the green infrastructure elements included in the project provide opportunities 
for community education and outreach.  
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Appendix B: Photos of Existing Stormwater System 
  



City of Trinidad Project Photographs 

 
 

 
Trinidad City Storm Drain Outlet                  

 
 
 
 

 
Road view of drainage inlet looking down Trinity Street.                                         



City of Trinidad Project Photographs 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Road view of drainage inlet looking down Edwards Street.  
 
                                         
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Parking lot area for beach access. 
 



 
 

 

Appendix C: Correspondence with State Water Board 

  







































































 
 

 

Appendix D: Engineer’s Cost Estimates 

  



NON-CONSTRUCTION
Direct Project Administration 

Funds Administration $39,000
Project Management/Coordination $100,000
Labor Compliance $37,000

Planning, Environmental, and Engineering
Engineering

Project Design $167,000
Preliminary Engineering Report $26,000

Permitting and Supporting Studies
Preparation of CEQA $39,000
Report of Waste Discharge/Form 200 $30,000
Biological Resources Survey $7,000
Cultural Resources Survey $10,000
City of Trinidad Coastal Development Permit $21,000
NEPA $30,000

Monitoring Plans
Project Planning and Management $10,000
Implement Monitoring Plan $41,000
QA/QC, Data Management, Reporting $26,000

Land Acquisition
Aquire Project Site Easement $100,000

Education and Outreach $8,000

Bid Period Assistance $20,000

Construction Contingency $320,000

NON-CONSTRUCTION SUBTOTAL $1,031,000

CONSTRUCTION

Construction Administration $320,000

Project Construction
Project Initiation and Monitoring $500,000
Centralized Stormwater Treatment System (including delivery/installat $2,000,000
Contractor's Overhead and Profit (15% of construction sub-total) $500,000
Minor Stormwater System Upgrades $200,000

CONSTRUCTION TOTAL $3,520,000
GRAND TOTAL $4,551,000

 
TOTAL COST

Table D1: Alternative 1 Capital Costs



NON-CONSTRUCTION
Direct Project Administration 

Funds Administration $39,000
Project Management/Coordination $100,000
Labor Compliance $37,000

Planning, Environmental, and Engineering
Engineering

Citywide LID Hydrogeologic Analysis $37,000
Project Design $167,000
Preliminary Engineering Report for USDA $26,000

Permitting and Supporting Studies
Preparation of CEQA $39,000
Biological Resources Survey $7,000
Cultural Resources Survey $10,000
City of Trinidad Coastal Development Permit $21,000
NEPA $30,000

Monitoring Plans
Project Planning and Management $9,000
Implement Monitoring Plan $40,000
QA/QC, Data Management, Reporting $25,000

Education and Outreach
Program Implementation $8,000

Bid Period Assistance $20,000

Construction Contingency $396,300

NON-CONSTRUCTION SUBTOTAL $1,011,300

CONSTRUCTION

Construction Administration $396,000

Project Construction
Project Initiation and Monitoring $855,000
Edwards Street Improvements $586,075
Ewing Street Improvements $417,350
Underwood Drive Improvements $360,350
Lower Parking Area/Lighthouse Drive Improvements $1,643,900
Existing Outfall Decomissioning $100,000

CONSTRUCTION TOTAL $4,358,675
GRAND TOTAL $5,369,975

 

Table D2: Alternative 2 Capital Costs

 TOTAL COST



Table D3: Proposed Project Capital Costs

Unit Cost Units
# of 

Units
Total Cost

$176,000
$39,000

$100,000
$37,000

$337,000
$37,000

$167,000
$39,000
$7,000

$10,000
$21,000
$26,000
$30,000
$74,000
$9,000

$40,000
$25,000
$8,000

$20,000
$396,300
$396,000

$3,962,675

$405,000
$5,000

$40,000
$40,000

$100,000
$190,000
$25,000
$50,000

     Sawcutting Pavement $10 LF 610 $6,100
     Demolition $10,000 LS 1 $10,000
     Excavation and Off Haul $75 CY 725 $54,400
     Infiltration Chamber $325 LF 125 $40,625
     Treatment Unit $75,000 EA 3 $225,000
     Structural Backfill $200 TON 560 $112,000
     Storm Drain $120 LF 235 $28,200
     Precast Drainage Inlet and Misc. Concrete $6,300 EA 12 $75,600
     Asphalt Paving $400 TON 60 $24,000
     Permeable Rock $45 TON 210 $9,450
     Re-striping $700 LS 1 $700

     Sawcutting Pavement $10 LF 930 $9,300
     Demolition $7,000 LS 1 $7,000
     Excavation and Off Haul $75 CY 850 $63,800
     Infiltration Chamber $325 LF 90 $29,250
     Treatment Unit $140,000 EA 1 $140,000
     Structural Backfill $200 TON 180 $36,000
     Storm Drain $120 LF 330 $39,600

Labor Compliance

Budget Item
Consulting/Materials/Equipment

Direct Project Administration Costs
Funds Administration
Project Management/Coordination

Project Planning and Management

Planning/Design/Engineering/ Environmental
Citywide LID Hydrogeologic Analysis
Project Design
Preparation of CEQA
Biological Resources Survey
Cultural Resources Survey
City of Trinidad Coastal Development Permit (CDP)  
Preliminary Engineering Report for USDA
NEPA
Monitoring/Performance

Potholing

Implement Monitoring Plan
QA/QC, Data Management, Reporting
Education/Outreach
Bid Period Assistance
Construction Contigency
Construction Administration
Project Construction
Project Initiation and Monitoring
Mobilization/ Demobilization
Temporary Construction Sign
Cultural Resource Monitorning

Temporary Traffic Control
Shoring and Trench Safety
Construction Staking 
Erosion and Sediment Control
Edwards Street Improvements

Ewing Street Improvements



Table D3: Proposed Project Capital Costs

Unit Cost Units
# of 

Units
Total Cost

Budget Item
Consulting/Materials/Equipment

     Drainage Inlet and Misc. Concrete $6,300 EA 5 $31,500
     Asphalt Paving $400 TON 50 $20,000
     Manhole $9,000 EA 1 $9,000
     Permeable Rock $45 TON 260 $11,700
     Conc. Curb and Gutter $145 LF 135 $19,600
     Re-striping $600 LS 1 $600

     Sawcutting Pavement $10 LF 910 $9,100
     Demolition $10,000 LS 1 $10,000
     Excavation and Off Haul $75 CY 600 $45,000
     Infiltration Chamber $325 LF 70 $22,750
     Treatment Unit $140,000 EA 1 $140,000
     Structural Backfill $200 TON 110 $22,000
     Storm Drain $120 LF 150 $18,000
     Drainage Inlet and Misc. Concrete $6,300 EA 2 $12,600
     Asphalt Paving $400 TON 40 $16,000
     Permeable Rock $45 TON 260 $11,700
     Conc. Curb and Gutter $145 LF 350 $50,800
     Grading $15 SY 160 $2,400

     Sawcutting Pavement $10 LF 2550 $25,500
     Demolition $20,000 LS 1 $20,000
     Excavation and Off Haul $75 CY 3950 $296,300
     Infiltration Chamber $325 LF 1500 $487,500
     Treatment Unit $300,000 EA 1 $300,000
     Structural Backfill $200 TON 540 $108,000
     Storm Drain $120 LF 1180 $141,600
     Drainage Inlet and Misc. Concrete $6,300 EA 6 $37,800
     Asphalt Paving $400 TON 135 $54,000
     Manhole $9,000 EA 2 $18,000
     Parking Lot Resurfacing $45 TON 100 $4,500
     Permeable Rock $45 TON 1500 $67,500
     Conc Valley Gutter $145 LF 140 $20,300
     Conc. Curb and Gutter $145 LF 410 $59,500
     Re-striping $3,400 LS 1 $3,400

$100,000
Grand Total: $5,369,975

Underwood Improvements

Lower Parking Lot Area/Lighthouse Drive Improvements

Outfall Decommissioning
Decomission Stormwater Outfall to ASBS
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MARCELLO & COMPANY 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
____________________________________________________________________________ 

2701 Cottage Way, Suite 30 / Sacramento, California 95825 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

Honorable Mayor 
Members of the City Council 
City of Trinidad, California 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Trinidad, California, as 
of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based upon our audit.  We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation 
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but 
not for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, 
we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion.  

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Trinidad, as of June 30, 2016, and the respective changes 
in financial position and where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  
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Honorable Mayor 
Members of the City Council 
City of Trinidad, California 
 
 
Other Matters  
 
Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis, and budgetary comparison information, as listed in the table of contents, be presented 
to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, although not part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential 
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historic context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of 
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.  
 
Management has omitted management’s discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such 
missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic 
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  Our opinion on the basic 
financial statements is not affected by this missing information.  
 
Other Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the City of Trinidad’s basic financial statements.  The combining nonmajor fund financial statements 
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements.   
 
The combining nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and were derived 
from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements.  The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to 
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects 
in relation to the financial statements as a whole.  
 

Marcello & Company 
Certified Public Accountants 
Sacramento, California 
December 1, 2016  



GOVERNMENT-WIDE  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



  
 

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

 
Cash and investments 1,334,289$         1,071,664$        2,405,953$        
Receivables 149,153             71,666               220,819             
Capital assets not being depreciated 9,500                 1,923,439          1,932,939          
Capital assets, net of depreciation 3,061,124          223,907             3,285,031          

Total assets 4,554,066          3,290,676          7,844,742          

 Payables 101,188             43,304               144,492             
 Customer deposits -                     2,980                 2,980                 

Total liabilities 101 188 46 284 147 472

Primary Government

CITY OF TRINIDAD
Government-wide Financial Statements
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2016

LIABILITIES

ASSETS

4

Total liabilities 101,188           46,284             147,472            
 

Net investment in capital assets 3,070,624          2,147,346           5,217,970          
Restricted 28,601               -                     28,601               
Unrestricted 1,353,653          1,097,046           2,450,699          

Total net position 4,452,878$        3,244,392$        7,697,270$        
 
    

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement

NET POSITION

4



 

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type

Functions/Programs Expenditures Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total

Governmental Activities  
General government 349,621$        35,813$      -$                  -$               (313,808)$         (313,808)$      
Public safety 203,881          -              114,618        -                 (89,263)             (89,263)          
Public works 176,660          -              33,013          -                 (143,647)           (143,647)        
Capital improvement projects 173,914          -              45,327          112,965         (15,622)             (15,622)          
Depreciation 43,466            -              -                -                 (43,466)             (43,466)          

Total governmental activities 947,542          35,813        192,958        112,965         (605,806)           (605,806)        

Business-type Activities
Water utility 333,477          311,567      64,318          -                 42,408$          42,408           
Cemetery 23,585            13,042        -                -                 (10,543)           (10,543)          

Total business-type activities 357,062          324,609      64,318          -                 31,865            31,865           

Total primary government 1,304,604$     360,422$   257,276$     112,965$      (573,941)      

Net (Expense) Revenue and

CITY OF TRINIDAD
Government-wide Financial Statements
Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2016

Change in Net PositionProgram Revenue
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p y g ,3 ,$ 3 ,$ ,$ ,$ ( 3, )

250,368            -                      250,368         
  Property & other taxes 147,243            -                      147,243         
 127,794            -                      127,794         
 53,741              -                      53,741           
 3,262                1,101              4,363             
 28,314               4,354               32,668           

Totals 610,722            5,455              616,177         

4,916                37,320            42,236           

 
Beginning 4,104,584         3,207,072       7,311,656      

343,378            -                      343,378         
Beginning, as restated 4,447,962         3,207,072       7,655,034      
End of year 4,452,878$       3,244,392$     7,697,270$    

     

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement

     Net Position

Other revenue

Prior period adjustment

               Change in Net Position

Use of property
Investment earnings

Transient occupancy

         General Revenue          
Sales tax

 5



FUND  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



Clean  Other Total
General Beaches COPS Governmental Governmental

Fund Grant Grant Funds Funds
 

Cash and investments 1,334,236$     -$               -$               35,587$         1,369,823$      
Receivables 94,644            22,931           24,626           6,952             149,153           

Total assets 1,428,880$     22,931$         24,626$         42,539$         1,518,976$      

72,999$          17,369$         -$               10,820$         101,188$         
-                  5,337             23,526           6,671             35,534             

Total liabilities 72 999 22 706 23 526 17 491 136 722

ASSETS

CITY OF TRINIDAD
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2016

Payables
 Cash overdrafts

LIABILITIES

 6

Total liabilities 72,999           22,706         23,526         17,491          136,722         

 Nonspendable -                  -                 -                 -                 -                   
Restricted -                  225                1,100             12,844           14,169             

 Committed 15,000            -                 -                 -                 15,000             
Assigned 64,418            -                 -                 20,489           84,907             

 Unassigned 1,276,463       -                 -                 (8,285)            1,268,178        
Total fund balances 1,355,881       225                1,100             25,048           1,382,254        

Total liabilities and
fund balances 1,428,880$     22,931$         24,626$         42,539$         1,518,976$      

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement

FUND BALANCES
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Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds  (page 6) 1,382,254$      

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and therefore are not reported
in the balance sheet of governmental activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated 9,500 
Capital assets, net of depreciation 3,061,124        

Net Position - Governmental Activities  (page 4) 4,452,878$      

CITY OF TRINIDAD

June 30, 2016
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position

7

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement

7



Clean  Other Total
General Beaches COPS Governmental Governmental

REVENUE Fund Grant Grant Funds Funds
Intergovernmental 54,534$         45,327$         114,618$       145,978$       360,457$         
Property tax 92,709           -                 -                 -                 92,709             
Sales tax 250,368         -                 -                 -                 250,368           
Transient occupancy tax 127,794         -                 -                 -                 127,794           
Licenses, planning and permits 35,813           -                 -                 -                 35,813             
Use of property 53,741           -                 -                 -                 53,741             
Investment earnings 3,248             -                 -                 14                  3,262               
Other revenue 28,314           -                 -                 -                 28,314             

Totals 646,521         45,327           114,618         145,992         952,458           

EXPENDITURES
General government 330,255         -                 -                 19,366           349,621           
Public safety-police 83,709           -                 112,976         -                 196,685           
P bli f t fi 7 196 7 196

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balances
CITY OF TRINIDAD

Governmental Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2016

8

Public safety-fire 7,196             -                 -                 -                 7,196               
Public works 176,660         -                 -                 -                 176,660           
Capital improvement projects -                 45,102           -                 128,812         173,914           

Totals 597,820         45,102           112,976         148,178         904,076           

Excess Revenue over Expenditures 48,701           225                1,642             (2,186)            48,382             

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in 2,333             -                 -                 4,228             6,561               
Transfers (out) -                 -                 -                 (6,561)            (6,561)              

Totals 2,333             -                 -                 (2,333)             -                   

Change in Fund Balances 51,034            225                1,642             (4,519)            48,382             
Fund Balances - beginning 1,304,847      -                 (542)               29,567           1,333,872        
Fund Balances - end of year 1,355,881$     225$               1,100$           25,048$          1,382,254$      

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement
8



 

 48,382$           

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities are different because:

Capital Assets
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.  However,
in the statement of activities the cost of these assets is allocated over
their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

Depreciation expense (43,466)            
Capital asset additions - see Note 6 -                   

Change in Net Position Governmental Activities (page 5) 4 916$

Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds  (page 8)

CITY OF TRINIDAD

of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2016

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balances

9

Change in Net Position - Governmental Activities  (page 5) 4,916$             

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement
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Total

Water Cemetery Enterprise
ASSETS Fund Fund Funds
Current Assets:
 Cash and investments 939,675$         131,989$         1,071,664$      

Receivables 71,666             -                   71,666             
Total current assets 1,011,341        131,989           1,143,330        

Noncurrent Assets:
Capital assets not being depreciated 1,923,439        -                   1,923,439        

 Capital assets, net of depreciation 219,949           3,958               223,907           
Total assets 3,154,729        135,947           3,290,676        

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Payables 41 350 1 954 43 304

CITY OF TRINIDAD
Proprietary Funds
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2016

Business-type Activities

10

Payables 41,350           1,954             43,304            
Customer deposits 2,980               -                   2,980               

Total liabilities 44,330             1,954               46,284             

NET POSITION
2,143,388        3,958               2,147,346        

Restricted -                   -                   -                   
Unrestricted 967,011           130,035           1,097,046        

Total net position 3,110,399$      133,993$         3,244,392$      
 

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement

Net investment in capital assets

10



Total
Water Cemetery Enterprise

OPERATING REVENUE Fund Fund Funds
 Water sales 311,100$         -$  311,100$         

Burial plot sales - 13,042             13,042             
Late charges 467 - 467 

Totals 311,567           13,042             324,609           

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel services 135,370           22,630             158,000           
Operations and maintenance 112,486           728 113,214           
Depreciation 21,997             227 22,224             

Totals 269,853           23,585             293,438           

41,714             (10,543)            31,171             

NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES)

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

CITY OF TRINIDAD
Proprietary Funds
Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Change in Net Position
Year Ended June 30, 2016

Business-type Activities

11

( )
Intergovernmental grants 64,318             - 64,318             
Grant funded project expenses (63,624)            - (63,624)            
Investment earnings 960 141 1,101 
Other revenue (expense) 4,354 - 4,354 

Totals 6,008 141 6,149 

47,722             (10,402)            37,320             
3,062,677        144,395           3,207,072        
3,110,399$      133,993$         3,244,392$      

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement

Net Position - beginning
Net Position - end of year

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

11



CITY OF TRINIDAD

CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) Total
Water Cemetery Enterprise

Operating Activities Fund Fund Funds
Cash received from customers 312,123$          13,042$           325,165$         
Cash paid for employee compensation (135,370)           (22,630)            (158,000)          
Cash paid for operations and maintenance (89,170)             (261)                 (89,431)            

Net cash provided (used) 87,583             (9,849)              77,734             

Other revenue 4,354               -                   4,354               
4,354               -                   4,354               

Capital & Financing Activities
Grants received 119,459           -                   119,459           
Grant funded capital expenditures (85,967)            -                   (85,967)            

33,492             -                   33,492             

Investing Activities

Proprietary Funds
Statement of Cash Flows

Business-type Activities

Net cash provided (used)

Net cash provided (used)

Noncapital Financing Activities

Year Ended June 30, 2016

12

Investing Activities
Investment earnings 960                  141                  1,101               

 
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash 126,389           (9,708)              116,681           

Cash - beginning 813,286           141,697           954,983           
Cash - end of year 939,675$         131,989$         1,071,664$      

  
Operating Activities Analysis

Operating Income (Loss)    (page 11) 41,714$           (10,543)$          31,171$           
Reconciliation adjustments:  

Add depreciation, a noncash expense 21,997             227                  22,224             
556                  -                   556                  

(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses 6,799               -                   6,799               
16,517             467                  16,984             
87,583$           (9,849)$            77,734$           

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement

Net cash provided (used)

(Increase) decrease in receivables

Increase (decrease) in payables

12



CITY OF TRINIDAD 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2016 
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The notes to the financial statements include a summary of significant accounting policies and other 

notes considered essential to fully disclose and fairly present the transactions and financial position of 

the City as follows:  

 
 Note   1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  
 
 Note   2 - Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability  
 
 Note   3 - Cash and Investments  
 
 Note   4 - Receivables  
 
 Note   5 - Defined Contribution Retirement Plan 
 
 Note   6 - Prior Period Adjustment 
 
 Note   7 - Capital Assets 
 
 Note   8 - Payables 
 
 Note   9 - Risk Management  
 
 Note 10 - Commitments and Contingencies  
 
 Note 11 - Subsequent Events 
 
 Note 12 - New Pronouncements 
 
 Note 13 - Fund Balance Designations Section of the Balance Sheet  
 
 



CITY OF TRINIDAD 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2016 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  
 
Defining the Reporting Entity 
The City of Trinidad was incorporated on November 7, 1870 under the laws of the State of California.  
The City operates under a Council-Manager form of government that provides the following services: 
public safety (police, fire and animal control), recreation and culture, public improvements, planning and 
zoning, general and administrative services, cemetery and water utilities.  
 
The City participates in a joint powers agency through a formally organized and separate entity 
agreement.  The financial activities of the Public Agency Risk Sharing Authority of California (PARSAC), 
a public entity risk pool, are not included in the accompanying financial statements because they are 
administered by a governing board which is separate from and independent of the City.  
 
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements 
– and Management’s Discussion and Analysis – for State and Local Governments set the standards for 
governmental financial reporting, and includes the following:  
 

• A Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section providing an analysis of the City’s 
overall financial position and results of operations.  

 
• Governmental-wide financial statements using full accrual accounting for all of the City’s 

activities, and fund financial statements to focus on the major funds.  
 

• Notes to the financial statements.  
 
These and other changes are reflected in the accompanying financial statements (including the notes to 
financial statements). The City has elected to implement the general provisions of GASB Statement No. 
34 to prospectively report infrastructure assets.  
 
The City of Trinidad, for financial purposes, includes all of the funds relevant to the operations of the City.  
The financial statements presented herein do not include agencies which have been formed under 
applicable state laws or separate and distinct units of government apart from the City.  
 
The City’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
(GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP 
for state and local governments through its pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations).  The more 
significant accounting policies established by GAAP and used by the City are described below:  
 
Basic Financial Statements – Government-wide Statements 
The City’s basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the City as a whole) and 
fund financial statements (reporting the City’s major funds).  Both the government-wide and fund financial 
statements categorize primary activities as either governmental or business-type.  The City’s police and 
fire protection, public works, special revenue projects, and general administrative services are classified 
as governmental activities.  The City’s water and cemetery services are classified as business-type 
activities.  
 
In the Government-wide Statement of Net Position, both the governmental and business-type activities 
columns are presented on a consolidated basis by column; and are reported on a full accrual, economic 
resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term debt and 
obligations.  The City utilizes restricted resources to finance qualifying activities.  



CITY OF TRINIDAD 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2016 
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The Government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost of each of the City’s 
functions and business-type activities.  The functions are also supported by general government revenue 
(property, sales and use taxes, transient occupancy taxes, certain intergovernmental revenue, fines, 
permits and charges, etc).  The Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses (including depreciation) 
by related program revenue, operating and capital grants.  Program revenue must be directly associated 
with the function (public safety, public works, etc.) or a business-type activity.  Operating grants include 
operating-specific and discretionary (either operating or capital) grants while the capital grants column 
reflects capital-specific grants.  
 
This government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the City as an entity and the change in the 
City’s net position resulting from the current year’s activities.  
 
Basic Financial Statements – Fund Financial Statements 
The financial transactions of the City are reported in individual funds in the fund financial statements.  
Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that encompass its 
assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenue and expenditures/expenses.  The various funds are reported by 
generic classification within the financial statements.  
 
Fund Types and Major Funds: 
 
Governmental Funds 
 

• General Fund – this fund is the primary operating fund of the City which is used to account for all 
financial resources not reported in other funds.  

 
• Special Revenue Funds – these funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue 

resources (other than major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specific 
purposes.  

 
• Capital Projects Funds – these funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for 

the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities or projects.  
 
Proprietary Funds 
The City reports the following proprietary funds:  
 

 Water Utilities Fund – accounts for the operating activities of the City’s water utility service.  
 

 Cemetery Fund – accounts for the operating activities of the City’s cemetery.  
 
Major Funds 
GASB Statement No. 34 defines major funds and requires that the City’s major governmental funds are 
identified and presented separately in the fund financial statements.  All other governmental funds, called 
nonmajor or other funds, are combined and reported in a single column, regardless of their fund-type.  
Major funds are defined as funds that have assets, liabilities, revenue, or expenditures/expenses equal to 
or greater than ten percent of their fund-type total, and can change annually.  The general fund is always 
a major fund.  The City may also select other funds it believes should be presented as major funds.  
 
The City reports the following major governmental funds:  
 

• General Fund - this is the primarily operating fund of the City.  It is used to account for all financial 
resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.  
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• Clean Beaches Grant - this fund is used to account for proceeds received from a State grant.  
Revenue is restricted for monitoring and management expenditures of biological significant areas. 

 
• COPS Grant - this fund is used to account for proceeds received from a State grant.  Revenue is 

restricted for public safety expenditures.  
 
Basis of Accounting 
Basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenue or expenditures/expenses are recognized in the 
accounts and reported in the financial statements.  It relates to the timing of the measurements made 
regardless of the measurement focus applied.  
 
Under the accrual method of accounting, both governmental and business-type activities in the 
government-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund financial statements are presented on the 
accrual basis of accounting.  Revenue is recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when 
incurred.  
 
Under the modified accrual method of accounting, the governmental funds financial statements are 
presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenue is recorded when susceptible to 
accrual; i.e., both measurable and available.  “Available” means collectible within the current period or 
within sixty days after year-end.  
 
Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related 
liability is incurred.  The exception to this general rule is that principal and interest on general obligation 
long-term debt, if any, is recognized when due.  
 
Cash, Investments and Cash Equivalents 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents - for purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City considers all highly 
liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents, which 
are shown on the statement of cash flows as “cash and investments.”  
 
Cash and Investments – are reported at fair value including the disclosure of risks related to credit risk, 
concentration of credit risk, and interest rate risk.  
 
Interfund Activity 
Interfund activity is reported as loans, reimbursements or transfers.  Loans are reported as interfund 
receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon consolidation.  
Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost and then charges the appropriate benefiting fund and 
reduces its related cost as a reimbursement.  All other interfund transactions are treated as transfers.  
Transfers between governmental and proprietary funds are netted as part of the reconciliation to the 
government-wide financial statements.  
 
Capital Assets 
Capital assets used in governmental fund type operations are accounted for on the statement of net 
position.  Public domain general capital assets (infrastructure) consisting of certain improvements other 
than buildings, such as roads, sidewalks and bridges are capitalized prospectively starting July 1, 2003 in 
accordance with GASB Stmt No. 34.  City policy has set the capitalization threshold for reporting capital 
assets at $5,000.  Capital outlay is recorded as expenditures of the general and special revenue funds, 
and, as capital assets in the government-wide financial statements to the extent the City’s capitalization 
threshold is met.  Donated assets are recorded at estimated fair value at the date of donation.  
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Property, plant and equipment acquired for proprietary funds are capitalized in the respective fund to 
which it applies and are stated at their cost.  Where cost could not be determined from the available 
records, estimated historical cost was used to record the estimated value of the assets.  

Depreciation is recorded on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the capital assets 
which range from 3 to 20 years for equipment and vehicles, and 20 to 50 years for infrastructure, 
buildings and improvements.  Land, art and treasurers are not considered exhaustible, therefore are not 
being depreciated.  

Compensated Absences 
In compliance with GASB Stmt No.16, the City has established a liability for accrued vacation, except 
that additional accruals for salary-related expenses associated with the costs of compensated absences, 
for example, the employer’s share of social security and Medicare taxes, have not been accrued as that 
amount is not considered significant or material to the financial statements taken as a whole.  All 
vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary funds financial 
statements.  This liability is established for current employees at their current rates of pay.  If accrued 
vacation is not used by the employee during their term of employment, compensation is payable to the 
employee at the time of separation, and at the employee’s prevailing rate of pay.  Each fiscal year, an 
adjustment to the liability is made based on pay rate changes and adjustments for the estimated current 
portion due within one year.  Due to the immaterial amount of year end accrued compensated absences, 
the City has elected to report compensated absences as accrued expenses in all funds, which is merged 
with accounts payable and reported as Payables in the financial statements.  

Estimates 
Financial statement presentation in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires the 
use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported 
amounts of revenue and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could vary 
from those estimates.  

Property Tax Revenue 
Property taxes in the State of California are administered for all local agencies at the County level and 
consist of secured, unsecured and utility tax rolls.  The following is a summary of major policies and 
practices relating to property taxes:  

Property Valuations - are established by the Assessor of Humboldt County for the secured
and unsecured property tax rolls; the utility property tax roll is valued by the California
State Board of Equalization.  Under the provisions of Article XIIIA of the State Constitution
(Proposition 13, adopted by the voters on June 6, 1978), properties are assessed at 100%
of full value.  From this base of assessment, subsequent annual increases in valuation are
limited to a maximum of 2%.  However, increase to full value is allowed for property
improvements or upon change in ownership.  Personal property is excluded from these
limitations and is subject to annual reappraisal.

Tax Levies - are limited to 1% of full assessed value which results in a tax rate of $1.00
per $100 assessed valuation under the provisions of Proposition 13. Tax rates for voter-
approved indebtedness are excluded from this limitation.

Tax Levy Dates - are attached annually on January 1, preceding the fiscal year for which
the taxes are levied.  The fiscal year begins July 1 and ends June 30 of the following year.
Taxes are levied on both real and unsecured personal property.  Liens against real estate,
as well as the tax on personal property, are not relieved by subsequent renewal or change
in ownership.
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 Tax Collections - are the responsibility of the County's tax collector.  Taxes and 

assessments on secured and utility rolls, which constitute a lien against the property, may 
be paid in two installments:  The first is due on November 1 of the fiscal year and is 
delinquent if not paid by December 10; and the second is due on March 1 of the fiscal 
year and is delinquent if not paid by April 10.  Unsecured personal property taxes do not 
constitute a lien against property unless the taxes become delinquent.  Payment must be 
made in one installment, which is delinquent if not paid by August 31 of the fiscal year.  
Significant penalties are imposed by the County for late payments.  The City has elected 
to receive the City's portion of the property tax revenue from the County under the State 
enacted “Teeter Bill” program.  Under this program, the City receives 100% of the City's 
share of the levied property taxes in periodic payments, with the County assuming 
responsibility for collecting the delinquencies as well as keeping the related late penalties 
and interest.  

 
 Tax Levy Apportionments - due to the nature of the City-wide maximum levy, it is not 

possible to identify general-purpose tax rates for specific entities.  Under State legislation 
adopted subsequent to the passage of Proposition 13, apportionments to local agencies 
are made by each County auditor-controller based primarily on the ratio that each agency 
represented of the total City-wide levy for the three fiscal years prior to fiscal year 1979.  

 
 Property Tax Administration Fees - the State of California fiscal year 1990-91 Budget Act 

authorized Counties to collect an administrative fee for its collection and distribution of 
property tax revenue.  

 
Revenue and Expenditures 
Substantially all governmental fund revenue is accrued.  Property taxes are billed and collected within 
the same period in which the taxes are levied.  Subsidies and grants to proprietary funds, which finance 
either capital or current operations, are reported as non-operating revenue based on GASB Stmt. No. 33.  
In applying GASB Statement No. 33 to grant revenue, the provider recognizes liabilities and expenses 
and the recipient recognizes receivables and revenue when the applicable eligibility requirements, 
including time requirements, are met.  Grant resources transmitted before eligibility requirements are 
met, are reported as advances by the provider and deferred revenue by the recipient.  
 
Operating income in proprietary fund financial statements includes revenue and expenses related to the 
primary continuing operations of the fund.  Principal operating revenue for proprietary funds are charges 
to customers for sales or services.  Principal operating expenses are the costs of providing goods or 
services and include administrative expenses and depreciation of capital assets.  Other revenue and 
expenses are classified as non-operating in the financial statements. When both restricted and 
unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use restricted resources first, and 
then unrestricted resources as needed.  Expenditures are recognized when the related fund liability is 
incurred.  
 
Net Position and Fund Balances 
 

The City’s net position is classified as follows on the government-wide statement of net position:  
 

 Net investment in capital assets - represents the City’s total investment in capital assets reduced 
by any outstanding debt used to acquire these assets.  

 Restricted net position - includes resources that the City is legally or contractually obligated to 
spend in accordance with restrictions imposed by external third parties.  

 Unrestricted net position - represents resources derived from sources without spending 
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restrictions, are used for transactions relating the general operations of the City, and may be used 
at the discretion of those charged with governance to meet current expenses or obligations for 
any purpose.  

 
 Fund balance designations are classified on the governmental funds balance sheet as follows:  
 

• Nonspendable - amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) legally or contractually 
required to be maintained intact or (b) not in spendable form such as long-term notes receivable.  

• Restricted - amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by constitution, 
external resource providers, or through enabling legislation.  

• Committed - amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes determined by a formal 
action of the City Council, to establish, modify or rescind a fund balance commitment.  

• Assigned - amounts that are constrained by the government’s intent to be used for specific 
purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed, as determined by 
a formal action or policy of the City Council or its appointed official.  

• Unassigned - the residual classification for the government’s general fund and includes all 
spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications.  

 
 
Note 2 - Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability  
 
Revenue Limitations Imposed by California Proposition 218 
Proposition 218, which was approved by the voters in November 1996, regulates the City’s ability to 
impose, increase, and extend taxes, assessments, and fees.  Any new, increased, or extended taxes, 
assessments, and fees subject to the provisions of Proposition 218, require voter approval before they 
can be implemented.  Additionally, Proposition 218 provides that these taxes, assessments, and fees are 
subject to the voter initiative process and may be rescinded in the future years by the voters.  
 
Deficit Fund Balances 
Due to the City incurring costs in advance of receiving grant awards and other reimbursements, and 
revenue which it expects to recover in the future from grants and other sources, the following funds 
incurred deficits in their ending fund balances:  

LCP Local Coastal Project 409$              
Onsite wastewater treatment fund 7,876             

8,285$           

 

 
Cash Deficit Balances by Fund 
The following governmental activity funds reported year-end cash deficit balances:  

Clean Beaches Grant 5,337$           
COPS program grant 23,526           
Onsite wastewater treatment fund 6,671             

35,534$         
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Note 3 - Cash and Investments 

The City follows the practice of pooling cash and investments of all funds except for restricted funds 
required to be held by outside custodians, fiscal agents or trustees, under the provisions of bond 
covenants.  Cash and investments at fiscal year-end are classified in the accompanying financial 
statements as follows:  

Collateral and Categorization Requirements 

Statement of Net Position 
Governmental Activities 1,334,289$       
Business-type Activities 1,071,664      

2,405,953$       

Cash and Investments consist of the following:
Deposits with financial institutions 1,756,503$       
Money Market Funds 76,788    
Local Agency Investment Fund 572,662  

2,405,953$       

At fiscal year end, the City’s carrying amount of demand deposits was $1,754,853 and the local bank 
account balances were $1,788,030.  The difference of $33,177 represented outstanding checks and 
deposits in transit.  Of the total bank deposit balance, $250,000 was insured by Federal Depository 
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) and $1,538,030 was collateralized in accordance with California 
Government Code Section 53600.  California law requires that the fair value of the pledged securities 
must equal at least 110% of the City’s deposits.  California law also allows financial institutions to secure 
the City’s deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the City’s total 
deposits.  

Investments in money market funds and the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) are not insured by the 
FDIC or any government agencies.  Investments in government or government sponsored entity (GSE) 
bonds are not insured but are collateralized by loans on real estate.  

Investment Policy 
The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized under provisions of the City’s 
investment policy adopted September 14, 2011, and in accordance with Section 53601 of the California 
Government Code.  The table also identifies certain provisions of the investment policy that address 
interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk.  

Maximum Maximum
Maximum Percentage Investment Minimum

Authorized Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio in One Issuer Rating
Certificates of Deposit 3 years 20% None None
U.S. Treasury Securities None None None None
Local Agency Investment Fund None None None N/A
State and Local Agency Obligations None 20% None AAA
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Interest Rate Risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment.  Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value 
to changes in market interest rates.  
 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
The investment policy of the City contains limitations on the amount that can be invested in any single 
issuer as described above, and beyond that stipulated by the California government code.  Investments 
at fiscal year-end were as follows:  

Investment Type Fair Value Maturity Yield Concentration
Local Agency Investment Fund 572,662$    6 months 0.55% 24%
Money Market Funds 76,788        on demand 0.01%  3%
Demand Deposits (checking) 1,754,853   on demand 0.01% 73%
      

 

Credit Risk 
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of 
the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical 
rating organization. The City’s investment policy limits credit risk by requiring compliance with the 
California Government Code for investment of public funds.  
 
The credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a 
government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that 
are in the possession of an outside party.  The California government code and the City’s investment 
policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for 
deposits, other than the following provision for deposits:  “The California government code requires that a 
financial institution secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in 
an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the 
governmental unit).  The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 
110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial 
institutions to secure City deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of 
the secured public deposits.”  
 
The credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-
dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral 
securities that are in the possession of another party.  The California government code and the City’s 
investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial 
credit risk for investments.  With respect to investments, custodial credit risk generally applies only to 
direct investments in marketable securities.  Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local government’s 
indirect investment in securities through the use of mutual funds or government investment pools (such 
as LAIF).  
 
Participation in an External Investment Pool 
The City is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF).  LAIF, established in 
1977, is regulated by California Government Code Section 16429 and under the day to day 
administration of the California State Treasurer.  There is a five member Local Investment Advisory 
Board that is chaired by the State Treasurer.  LAIF determines fair value of its investment portfolio based 
on market quotations for those securities where market quotations are readily available, and on 
amortized cost or best estimate for those securities where market value is not readily available.  LAIF is 
part of the Pooled Money Investment Account (PMIA) and under the control of the State Treasurer’s 
Office, which is audited by the Bureau of State Audits.  As of June 30, 2016, PMIA had approximately 
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$77.6 billion in investments.  Audited financial statements of PMIA may be obtained from the California 
State Treasurer’s web site at www.treasurer.ca.gov.  
 
The fair value of the City’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at 
amounts based upon the City’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF 
portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio).  The balance available for withdrawal is based 
on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. 
 
 
Note 4 - Receivables  
 
Accounts and other receivables as reported in the Statement of Net Position are comprised of the 
following: 

Governmental Activities
Sales taxes 56,037$         
COPS grant 24,626           
Grant reimbursements 32,179           
Property taxes 27,173           
Other receivables 9,138             

149,153$       

Business-type Activities
Water fund - grant reimbursements 26,795$         
Water utility customers 44,871           

71,666$         

 
Management has elected to record bad debts using the direct write-off method.  Accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America require that the allowance method be used to reflect 
bad debts.  However, the effect of the use of the direct write-off method is not materially different from 
the results that would have been obtained had the allowance method been followed. 
 
 
Note 5 - Defined Contribution Retirement Plan  
 
The City contributes to an employee owned defined contribution plan administered through Smith 
Barney/Hartford ITT under established plan provisions, and which may be amended by City council 
resolution.  The City contributes 6% of an employee’s annual salary to the plan which provides retirement 
benefits.  The City also provides matching contributions up to 6% of an employee’s contributions for all 
eligible employees.  Plan participants age 50 and older can make catch-up annual contributions up to 
$5,000; and in the three years prior to retirement, can make catch-up contributions of up to twice the 
annual limit.  All employee and employer contributions are tax deferred to the employee.  The City 
contributed $27,765 to the plan for the year. 
 
 
Note 6 - Prior Period Adjustment  
 
The City is recording a street improvement project in the amount of $343,378, started in year 2013 that 
was completed in year 2015.   

http://www.treasurer.ca.gov/
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Note 7 - Capital Assets  
 
Governmental-type capital asset activity for the year was follows: 

Beginning 
Balance

Additions/ 
Completions

Retirements/ 
Adjustments

Ending 
Balance

Nondepreciable Assets
   Land 9,500$            -$               -$               9,500$           
   Construction-in-progress 1,680,432      (1,680,432)     -                 -                 

1,689,932      (1,680,432)     -                 9,500             
Depreciable Assets
   Buildings, Improvements,
   and Streets 1,269,876      1,680,432      343,827         3,294,135      
   Equipment 103,924         -                 -                 103,924         
   Vehicles 57,775           -                  -                 57,775           
 1,431,575      1,680,432       343,827         3,455,834      

Accumulated Depreciation (351,244)        -                 (43,466)          (394,710)        

   Depreciable assets, net 1,080,331      1,680,432      300,361         3,061,124      

Total capital assets, net 2,770,263$    -$                   300,361$       3,070,624$    

 
 
 
Business-type capital asset activity for the year was follows: 

Beginning Additions/ Retirements/ Ending
Balance Completions Adjustments Balance

Nondepreciable Assets
   Land 5,089$              -$                  -$                  5,089$              
   Construction-in-progress 1,918,350         -                    -                    1,918,350         
 1,923,439         -                    -                    1,923,439         
Depreciable Assets
   Water utility 1,151,749         -                    (2,282)               1,149,467         
   Cemetery 7,964                -                    -                    7,964                

1,159,713         -                    (2,282)               1,157,431         
Accumulated Depreciation     
   Water utility (909,805)           (21,995)             2,282                (929,518)           
   Cemetery (3,779)               (227)                  -                    (4,006)               
   Depreciable assets, net 246,129            (22,222)             -                    223,907            

Total capital assets, net 2,169,568$       (22,222)$           -$                  2,147,346$       
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Note 8 - Payables  
 
Accounts payable and accruals, as reported in the Statement of Net Position are comprised of the 
following: 

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities

   Contractors, programs &
     projects - grant funded 39,856$            9,923$              
   Engineering/planning consultants 1,400                -                    
   County Sheriff - contract service 8,818                -                    
   TBID pass through 12,717              -                    
   Vendors and supplies 38,397              33,381              

101,188$          43,304$            

 
 
Note 9 - Risk Management  
 
The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, thefts, damage and destruction of assets, 
errors and omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters.  The City is a member of the Public 
Agency Risk Sharing Authority of California (PARSAC or the Authority), a public entity risk pool currently 
operating as a common risk management and insurance program for member cities.  The relationship 
between the City and PARSAC is such that PARSAC is not a component unit of the City for financial 
reporting purposes.  PARSAC is governed by a Board consisting of representatives from member 
municipalities.  The Board controls the operations of the Authority, including selection of management 
and approval of operating budgets, independent of any influence by member municipalities beyond their 
representation on the Board.  The City’s deposits with the Authority are in accordance with formulas 
established by the Authority.  Actual surpluses or losses are shared according to a formula developed 
from overall loss costs and spread to member entities on a percentage basis after a retrospective rating.  
Financial statements may be obtained from PARSAC, 1525 Response Road, Suite One, Sacramento, 
CA 95815. 
 
For workers compensation insurance, the City is insured for the first $250,000 of claims by PARSAC, 
and above $250,000 by the Local Agency Workers Compensation Excess Company.  For general liability 
and automobile liability, the City is self-insured for the first $1,000 of claims.  There is a shared risk layer 
for losses between $1,000 to $1,000,000, and losses in excess of $1,000,000, up to $3,000,000, are 
covered by excess insurance.  For property coverage, the City is protected by a commercial general 
liability insurance policy.  The City is self-insured for the first $5,000 of per occurrence claims with 
various degrees of risk protection depending upon the type of coverage. 
 
 
Note 10 - Commitments and Contingencies  
 
In the normal course of City operations there are occasional and various legal claims and actions against 
the City for which no provision has been made in the financial statements because the amount of liability, 
if any, is unknown. 
 
The City has received state and federal funds for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit 
by the grantor agencies.  Although such audits could generate expenditure disallowances under terms of 
the grants, it is believed that any required reimbursements will not be material. 
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The City entered into an agreement with the County of Humboldt to provide law enforcement services 
within the City limits, payable in the amount of $37,659 per quarter.  The agreement period commences 
July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2017, unless terminated pursuant to mutual agreement.  Appropriations 
are partially funded through an annual State grant in the amount of $100,000.  
 
At June 30, 2016 the City was committed to several grant funded contracts related to water quality, 
environmental issues and water plant upgrades, and street improvements.  The ability of the City to meet 
its commitments is dependent upon continued intergovernmental appropriated funding. 
 
The City entered into a 99-year lease agreement with the Trinidad Coastal Land Trust, for a building 
which is occupied by a branch of the Humboldt County library.  Annual rent is $500 per year and 
adjusted every five years equal to a consumer price index. 
 
 
Note 11 - Subsequent Events  
 
The management of the City has reviewed the results of operations for the period from its fiscal year end 
June 30, 2016 through December 20, 2016, the date the financial statements were available to be issued 
in draft form, and have determined that no adjustments are necessary to the amounts reported in the 
accompanying financial statements nor have any subsequent events occurred, the nature of which would 
require disclosure.  
 
 
Note 12 - New Pronouncements  
 
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has released the following new 
pronouncements, which can read in their entirety at http://www.gasb.org. 
 
GASB Statement No. 82, Pension Issues—an amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No. 68, and No. 
73 
Effective Date: The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after 
June 15, 2016, except for the requirements of paragraph 7 in a circumstance in which an employer’s 
pension liability is measured as of a date other than the employer’s most recent fiscal year-end. In that 
circumstance, the requirements of paragraph 7 are effective for that employer in the first reporting period 
in which the measurement date of the pension liability is on or after June 15, 2017.  Earlier application is 
encouraged. 
 
GASB Statement No. 81, Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements 
Effective Date: The requirements of this Statement are effective for periods beginning after December 
15, 2016.  Earlier application is encouraged. 
 
GASB Statement No. 80, Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units—an amendment of 
GASB Statement No. 14 
Effective Date: The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after 
June 15, 2016.  Earlier application is encouraged. 
 
GASB Statement No. 79, Certain External Investment Pools and Pool Participants 
Effective Date: The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after 
June 15, 2015, except for the provisions in paragraphs 18, 19, 23–26, and 40, which are effective for 
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2015.  Earlier application is encouraged. 
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GASB Statement No. 78, Pensions Provided through Certain Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension 
Plans 
Effective Date: The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after 
December 15, 2015.  Earlier application is encouraged. 
 
GASB Statement No. 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures 
Effective Date: The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after 
December 15, 2015.  Earlier application is encouraged. 
 
GASB Statement No. 76, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State and Local 
Governments 
Effective Date: The provisions in Statement 76 are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 
15, 2015.  Earlier application is encouraged. 
 
GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than 
Pensions 
Effective Date: The provisions in Statement 75 are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 
2017. Earlier application is encouraged. 
 
GASB Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension 
Plans 
Effective Date: The provisions in Statement 74 are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 
2016.  Earlier application is encouraged. 
 
GASB Statement No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets That Are 
Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB 
Statements 67 and 68 
Effective Date: The provisions in Statement 73 are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 
2015—except those provisions that address employers and governmental nonemployer contributing 
entities for pensions that are not within the scope of Statement 68, which are effective for fiscal years 
beginning after June 15, 2016.  Earlier application is encouraged.  
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Note 13 - Fund Balance Designations Section of the Balance Sheet

Major Major
Fund Fund Total Total
Clean COPS Nonmajor Fund

General Beaches Grant Governmental Balance
Fund Balances Fund Grant Fund Funds Designations

Nonspendable: -$            -$          -$           -$            -$            

Restricted for:   
Clean Beaches project -              225           -             -              225             
COPS grant expenditures -              -            1,100         -              1,100          
State Gas tax street projects -              -            -             5,630          5,630          
State TDA street projects -              -            -             7,214          7,214          

Total restricted fund balances -              225           1,100         12,844        14,169        
 

Committed to:   
Self insurance reserve 15,000         -            -             -              15,000        

Total committed fund balances 15,000         -            -             -              15,000        

Assigned to: 
Fire dept capital reserve 50,700         -            -             -              50,700        
Public works capital reserve 10,000         -            -             -              10,000        
Town hall capital reserve 3,718           -            -             -              3,718          
Integrated Waste Mgmt -              -            -             20,489        20,489        

Total assigned fund balances 64,418         -            -             20,489        84,907        

Unassigned: 1,276,463    -            -             (8,285)         1,268,178   

Total Fund Balances 1,355,881$  225$         1,100$       25,048$      1,382,254$ 
     



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REQUIRED  SUPPLEMENTARY  INFORMATION 
 

(unaudited) 
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Note to Required Supplementary Information on 

Budgetary Comparison Information 
June 30, 2016 

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial 
statements:  

• Prior to the close of each fiscal year, the City Manager submits to the City Council a proposed
operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1. The operating budget
includes proposed revenue and expenditures.

• Public hearings are conducted at City Council meetings to obtain taxpayer comments prior to
adoption of the budget in June.

• Prior to July 1, the budget is legally adopted for all governmental fund types through Council
approved resolution.

• The City Manager is authorized to transfer budget amounts within and between funds as deemed
desirable and necessary in order to meet the City’s needs; however, revisions that alter the total
expenditures must be approved by the City Council.  Formal budgetary integration is employed as
a management control device during the year for the governmental type funds.

• Budgets for the governmental type funds are adopted on a basis consistent with generally
accepted accounting principles.  Budgeted amounts presented are as originally adopted and as
further amended by the City Council.



Variance with
Final Budget

Actual Positive
 Original  Final  Amounts (Negative)

Resources (Inflows)
Property taxes 98,630$        98,630$       92,709$        (5,921)$         
Sales taxes 200,000        200,000       250,368        50,368          
Transient occupancy taxes 120,000        120,000       127,794        7,794            

54,300          54,300 54,534          234 
Investment earnings 6,000            6,000 3,248            (2,752)           
Licenses, planning and permits 25,100          25,100 35,813          10,713          
Rent and land leases 46,425          46,425 53,741          7,316            
Other revenue 1,030            1,030 28,314          27,284          
Transfers in 30,000          30,000 2,333            (27,667)         
Police COPS grant fund 100,000        100,000       114,618        14,618          

Amounts Available for Appropriation 681,485        681,485       763,472        81,987          

Charges to Appropriation (Outflow)
Public Safety - Police general fund 206,224        206,224       83,709          122,515        

Intergovernmental

CITY OF TRINIDAD
Budgetary Comparison Information

General Fund and COPS State Grant Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2016

Budget Amounts (unaudited)

29

- - 112,976        (112,976)       
subtotal - Police 206,224        206,224       196,685        9,539            

General Gov. - City Administration 322,433        322,433       330,255        (7,822)           
Public Safety - Fire 15,870          15,870 7,196            8,674            
Public Works 161,904        161,904       176,660        (14,756)         
Fire dept. reserve - - - - 
Public works reserve - - - - 
Town hall reserve - - - - 
Transfers out - - - - 

Total Charges to Appropriations 706,431        706,431       710,796        (4,365)           

Surplus (Deficit) (24,946)$       (24,946)$      52,676$        77,622$        

Public Safety - Police COPS grant fund
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OTHER  SUPPLEMENTARY  INFORMATION



Cash and investments 20,972$    1,771$        5,630$    7,214$            -$              -$             -$            -$            -$            35,587$         

Receivables 1,006        5,946          -          - - -               -              -              -              6,952             
     Total assets 21,978$    7,717$        5,630$    7,214$            -$              -$             -$            -$            -$            42,539$         

Payables 1,489$      8,126$        -$        -$  -$              1,205$         -$            -$            -$            10,820$         

Cash overdrafts -            -             -          - - 6,671           -              -              -              6,671             

     Total liabilities  1,489        8,126          -          - - 7,876           -              -              -              17,491           

20,489      (409)           5,630      7,214              - (7,876)          -              -              -              25,048           

     Total liabilities and
      fund balances  21,978$    7,717$        5,630$     7,214$            -$              -$             -$            -$            -$            42,539$         

 FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES

ASSETS

 State 
Gas Tax 

Fund 

 ASBS 
Stormwater 

Project 

Year Ended June 30, 2016

CITY OF TRINIDAD

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Combining Financial Statements

 Onsite 
Wastewater 
Treatment 

 Watershed 
Coordinator 

Project 

 Creek  
Sediment 
Reduction 

 TOTAL 
NONMAJOR 

FUNDS 

 Transportation 
Development 

Agency 

 Grant 
Coordinator 

Holding 

 Integrated 
Waste 
Mgmt 

 LCP Local 
Coastal 
Project 

Intergovernmental 9,380$      29,797$      13,935$  25,243$          57,925$        -$             -$            -$            9,698$        145,978$       

Other revenue -            -             6             8 - -               -              -              -              14 

      Total revenue 9,380        29,797        13,941    25,251            57,925          -               -              -              9,698          145,992         

General government 19,366      -             -          - - -               -              -              -              19,366           

Capital improvements -            30,206        7,582      23,932            57,976          1,529           -              (2,273)         9,860          128,812         

      Total expenditures 19,366      30,206        7,582      23,932            57,976          1,529           -              (2,273)         9,860          148,178         

Transfers in -            -             -          - - -               4,228          -              -              4,228             

Transfers (out) -            -             -          - (2,134)           -               -              (4,246)         (181)            (6,561)            

(9,986)       (409)           6,359      1,319              (2,185)           (1,529)          4,228          (1,973)         (343)            (4,519)            

 30,475      -             (729)        5,895              2,185            (6,347)          (4,228)         1,973          343             29,567           

20,489$    (409)$         5,630$    7,214$            -$              (7,876)$        -$            -$            -$            25,048$         

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

EXPENDITURES

REVENUE

Fund balances - beginning
Fund balances - end of year

 30




